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Totally Plc is listed on London’s Alternative Investment Market
(ticker “TLY").

Totally compnses of two business units

e Totally Communications

Totally Communications are leading experts in the online industry. They specialise
In Software Development, Creative Web Design and Search Marketing.

They wark with a range of clients across many different sectors Glebal enterpnses,
Chanties, SMES or new business startups

e

Totally Health 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Totally plc, established in 2011
to provide digital solutions to the healthcare sector

Totally Health 1s made up of a highly expenenced team, offenng bespoke
healthcare solutions, focussing on the provision of Professional Health Coaching
which promotes self care and long term behaviour changes to enable people

to Iive longer and more independently.

Contents

Performance highlights 01 Independent auditor's report 16
Chairman’s statement 02 Consolidated income statement 18
Chief Executive's review 03 Consoldated statement of changes inequity 19
Totally's market 05 Consolidated statement of financial posiuon 20
Business review 07 Company statement of financtal posiion 21
Directors’ report 09 Consolidated cash flow statement 22
Board report on Corporate Governance 13 Notes to the financial statements 23

Statement of Directors Responsibilities 15 Company information 44



PERFORMANCE HIGHUGHTS

B Revenues from continuing operations £1.62m up 86 per cent. (2011° £0.87m)
8 Gross profit from continuing operations £0.63m up 33 per cent. (2011: £0.48m)
B Total EBITDA from continuing operations £(0.52)m (2011: £{0.06)m)

B Operating loss from continuing operations before tax £(0.55)m (2011. £(0.08)m)
B Cash utiised from operating activities £(0.14)m (2011 £(0.01)m)

B Basic loss per share (0.6)p (2011: (0.2)p per share)

R Commencement of sales of digital solutions to healthcare sector

B Entry into Shared Decision Making contract with the NHS

B Sale of the UK publishing business



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

2012 marked the transformation of Totally Plc into a serious participant in the Healthcare
IT market, maximising the digital expertise within our Totally Communications business
to extend and strengthen the capabilities of Totally Health.

Key events included the signing of the important Shared Decision Makang
{SDM) contract with the NHS in January and the sale of our pnnt media
business in May However, more important even than these sigmficant
milestones, was the assembly of a strong team of expert professionals
and ¢orporase partners

Dunng the latter part of 2012 and early 2013, we raised approximately

£1 1 millon {net of expenses) of capital for the Company through the
placing and exercise of wamants This fundraising will help us to meet the
ongong challenges of our enhanced contractual responsibilites As we win
new contracts we will seek to ensure that the strength of our balance sheet
keeps pace with the strength of our market success We expect the real
benefits of the repositioning of Totally Plc to be reflected in earmings
perfermance from 2014 onwards

Our management team, expertly led by Wendy Lawrence as CEO, 15 currently
submiting proposals for a number of contracts which, f awarded, will
enable us to leverags our SDM expenence Wendy was formally appointed
to the Board on 2 May 2013 With her previous NHS and private sector
expenence we are very pleased to have her as our CEQ With healthcare
systems throughout the world battling to adapt to senous financial
constraints, we belteve that the cost savings and enhanced health

outcomes we have demonstrated through our programmes to date, will
mean our solutions will not only be in demarnd by Climeal Commissioning
Groups (CCGs) and other health organisations in the UK, but also by
healthcare prowiders internationally We hope to be able to make positive
announcements In this regard over the summer months

By prowiding patients with clear and accurate information to support them
through their care pathways, we intend to make an impertant contnbution to
society We believe that by empowenng patients with umely and trusted
information, Totally's healthcare solutiens can play an important part in the
therapeutic process Our success in these endeavours will, | believe, lead to
significant increases in value for shareholders and stakeholders alike

r—
Dr M|d|aegd:|§

Non-Executive Chasrman

21 June 2013




CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

Totally Plc entered 2012 with two clear aims; to continue its development and growth
in the healthcare sector, and to build upon its established reputation as a leading
provider of digital technologies. Throughout the year, these two individual Group
companies, Totally Health and Totally Communications (with Rise Digital), worked
collaboratively to deliver innovative solutions to NHS and private sector organisations,

not-for-profit organisations and charities.

Totally Heatth

At the end of January 2012, Totally Plc signed 15 first NHS contract o
provide 36 disease-specific Personal Decision Aids (PDAs) and associated
Mobile Apps for (Phone and Android handsets 1t was also commissioned
to provide a CRM database to underpin the Shareg Decision Making
programme and health coaching for al! users of the service This was an
imital one-year contract that ran through to mid-March 2013 for alt
deliverables Excellent progress was made dunng 2012, with the formaton
of our Medical Advisory Groups, compnsing nattenal chnical leaders across
specific disease areas Work continues with NHS England to secure a way
forward with therr Shared Decision Making Programme

2012 alse saw us sign of our first NHS contract for the Managament of
Long Term Conditons, a cntical 1ssue and a major prionty for the UK's heaith
service The intial programme has seen us begin work with a group of COPD
(Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease) patients, to provide them with
telecare (wa another supplier) together with Health Coaching services

from Totally Health Early results from this programme are very positive
Ewidence shows that the imitative has not only yietded significant cost-
savings for the Clinical Commussioning Groups (CCGs), but 1t has alse had
a tremendously positive impact on the health cutcomes of the patents
imvolved Unplanned/emergency admissions to hospital have reduced

stgnificantly for this group of pauents and their condition has been much
better managed, even through the winter months, which are traditionally
when COPD patients struggle most.

Totally Communications

Totally Communications delivered services to more than 50 clents,
many of them with muitple contracts for diverse services

Key highlights include

NHS Shared Deciston Making Programme

W 36 Mohile Apps for both 1Phone and Android handsets

@ Shared decision making application and associated services

# Interactive Website for all Personal Decision Aids (36 in total for 2012}
B SANDY CRM system

Health Foundation

H Website redesign

B Design and delivery of mobile website

B Research scan database integration



CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

@l website build for self-management suppaort resource centre
@ Website build for Shared Decision Making resource centre
B Email marketing services integration

United Synagogue
W Update to membership system to integrate child/teen
membership services

B Development of a front end, seiff-service portal for adult,
child/teen members

B Development of back-end events/trip management system,
fully integrated reporting and commumcations tools to service
aduit and child/teen members

Operations

2012 was also about bullding capacity and extending capability Throughout
the year, we continued to expand our team of experts to support sustainable
growth across the Group and 1o ensure we consistently provide the optimal
team to deliver a top quality offenng to the markets in which we operate

We have strengthened our management teams

B Andrew Margols is now Chief Operating Officer for Totally Pic
B Ben Gntz is Managing Director for Totally Communmications

B Donald Baladasan i1s our Finance Director

Our chnical team conbinues to grow in strength as new service models
are planned and developed

Our Bids team has gone from strength to strength and protesses are in
place to ensure we are able to respond to all queries efficiently and
effectively This work has continued Inte 2013

2012 was certainly an exciting year for all concerned - but | beheve that this
was only the beginning of what promises to be an exciing phase of growth
and development for the Company

Financial Review

The Company's strateglc repositioning translated into revenue growth of
86% 1n 2012 to £1 62m (2011 £0 B7m) Totally Health contnbuted
£0 77m of which £0 71m related te delivery of the NHS SDM contract
and £0 06m related to the pilot COPD heatih coaching contract for
NHS Leicester Totally Communications contnbuted £0 85m (net of
intra-group revenue)

The operatng loss for the year was £(0 56)m and the contribution split
across the Group was Totally Commumications £0 03m, Totally Health

£(0 26)m and Totally Plc £(0 33)m The losses in Totally Health reflected the
infrastructure iImprovement costs including 150 accreditation and business
development These costs were incured to strengthen the Group's ability to
win and deliver further contracts

Group aperating cash utilised during the year was £0 14m this included the
covenng of all Plc costs tn addition the Group undertook a warrant
conversion funding round which generated net cash of £0 5m in December
2012 The second part of this funding generated a further £0 5m in January
2013 The funding proceeds were used to finance the costs incurred in
repositioning the Company and to provide working capital The current cash
balance i1s approxmately £0 15m and there are no bank borrowings

As referred to abave we are pleased that there are a number of significant
new business opportuniies under negotiation, certain of which we hope to
be able to announce in the near term The recent transition from Primary
Care Trusts {PCTs) to CCGs in Apnil has resulted in considerable internal
reorganisation within the NHS (n particular for Totally this has affected the
management of budgets and the contract decision making process with the
new NHS bodies

Totally 1s confident that, as the new CCGs and other NHS bodies bed down,
the award of contracts will accelerate in the second half of 2013 In the
short term this has resulted in a reductton In expected revenues for the
Group In the current financial year but the Board 15 confident that it has
sufficient workang capital at present to operate the business going forward
should the expected contracts and contracted revenue crystallise in line
with Internal projectons Having satd that, the Beard Is exploring options 0
strangthen the Company’s balance sheet over the next few months, ane of
which may be through the issue of new equity to ensure that the Company
has adequate resources to implement its business plan in full and fully
capitalise on the exciung opportunities that the Company has ahead of it.

| would like to thank everyone involved with the delivery of every aspect
of every area of the Company and for therr dedication and commitment
dunng 2012

Wendy Lawrence
Chief Executive Gfficer
21 June 2013



TOTALLY'S MARKET

Totally Plc comprises two business units; Totally Health and Totally Communications.
The two businesses have been developed in recognition of the increasingly important
role that digital and interactive technologies are playing in the evolution of business

strategies across all sectors.
The Totatly portfohio

Totally Plc compnses two business urits, Totally Health and Totally
Communications The two businesses have been developed in recognition of
the increasingly important role that digital and interactive technologies are
playing in the evolution of business strategies acrass all sectors

Totally services set out to eptimise the value of data and deliver customised
solutions that can improve engagement, streamline processes, dnve
mnovation and provide robust business intelligence to inform strategy

Dhgital technology 1s changing the business paradigm Totally takes a
collaborative approach to the development of customised solutions -
brnging together multidisciplinary stakeholders from targeted communites
to create holistic and interactive communications tools and services,
underpinned by robust and reliable data

Our markets

Healthcare

The healthcare environment in the UK 15 undergoing stgmificant change

The introduction of the Health & Social Care Act (2012) has led to a
wholesale recrgamsation of the NHS in England and a transformation in
the way healthcare services are commussioned This radical overhaul,

which finally became a reality n Apnil 2013, 15 being played out against
the wider backdrop of a sustained dnve to reduce healthcare spending and
find mere than £20 billien i efficiency savings - as well as improve the
quality of care and deliver better patient outcomes

Faced with an ageing population, increased demand on the system and
an ongoing reducton i healthcare budgets, health and social care in the
UK 15 fast approaching a tipping pant. The call to establish a new model
1s reaching fever pitch

National policy continues to point towards the development of integrated
care - bnnging together previously disparate health and social care systems
to create a whole system approach to care The establishment of integrated
care pathways, where patients sit at the centre and are empowered to make
a significant contnbution to all decisions about their care, has therefore
become the long-term strategic goal in the UK

But it 15 widely acknowledged that a successful move towards integrated
care will depend upon health and social care professionals ability to
harness the power of information The development of new and sustanatle
models of electronic healthcare, where cntical information can be securely
shared amongst pauents and appropnate professionals across all settings,
will require a collective will to seize the opportunities that innovative
technologies currently present.

Totally Plc beheves that digital solutions can play a major role 1n building
the health and social care services of the future Used optimally, digital
technology can revolutionise care, accelerate treatment pathways and dnve
health outcomes The aggregation, communication and interpretation of
cntical data can pravide clinicians, care professionals and patients with the
ability to make informed decisions and improve the quality of care and
quality of life for the UK population

Totally Health provides digital solutions to the UK healtheare sector

These nclude tools to support shared decision makung within the NHS,
customised electronic patient recosd systems for local healthcare
orgamsations, and bespoke long-term condition management programmes
that integrate health coaching, telehealth and case management.

Totally Health works closely and collaboratively with NHS policymakers
to ensure its services meet the needs of all healthcare stakeholders,
Health Authonties, Clinical Commissioning Groups, Community Senices,
Acute and Foundation Trusts, GP practices and, of course, patients

Totally Health solutions are underpinned by leading edge digital
technologies developed by its sister cempary, Totally Communications

Commercial and Not-for-Profit Organisations

The optimisation of digital technology has become one of the global
business community's brggest pnontes in recent years As organisations
seek to reduce costs and increase operatienal efficiency, digital media - as
part of an integrated multichanne! strategy - 15 widely regarded as a wital
engine for long-term growth The proliferation of digital channels is helping
companies butld interactivity with customers, extend core business and
identify new and emerging market opportunities



TOTALLY'S MARKET

But the rapid evalution of digital media has coincided with a vanability in
uptake across different market sectors Whereas some industnes have
reaped significant benefits from the early adopuon of digital mnovatien,
others have been more cauttous and taken an incremental approach to the
implementation of new technologies and communications platforms Across
the board, businesses have sought to learn the lessons from the dotcom
boom of the early 2000s, where compames invested quickly and heavily in
web development, only for projects to fatl to deliver the anticipated retums

Strategic multichannel planning as part of a fully-integrated communications
plan has therefore become a business-cntical activity across all commercial
and not-for-profit orgarisations Companies are increasingly recognising that
only the optimal balance of both traditional and digital media can deliver
cost-effective, efficient and productive communications that engage
customers, increase conversion and dnve growth

The interactive nature of digital technologies 1s helping to transform
organisations’ appreach to the development of digital tools As businesses
endeavour to become more customer-focused, many are beginning to
capture the insights of end-users and key stakeholders dunng the
development process - to ensure that digrtal products and services align
with customer needs and expectations This growing trend 1s dramatcally
changing the landscape of digital development Companies are moving
away from a reliance on off-the-shelf digital solutions and are instead
opting to build bespoke products that tailor funcuonality to the needs

of their users Businesses are increasingly deploying ‘Agle project
management’ techniques and taking an iterative and collaborative
approach to planning and delivery

Adoption of Agile development methadology 1s steadily nsing. There 1s
growing recognition that taking an iterative approach to the development of
digital tools - where iterations are tested and criqued by key user groups,
and evaluations are used to inform the next phases of development - 1s
helping companies mitgate the nsk of project fallure, increase productivity,
reduce costs and accelerate speed to market Moreover, Agile methodology
1s helping organisations ensure that final iterations are butlt around the
robust alignment of business, IT and customer needs

Although the move towards Agile project management s a global one,

in the UK alone it 1s growing in prominence In the past two years, the UK
government has indicated its preference for all government digital services
to be developed using Agle techniques Many of its pilot sites have been
tested by UK citizens using crowdsourcing, in the process, helping to infarm
development and improve the user expenence based on real-world evidence

Totally Communications 15 a full-service digital agency that creates intelligent,
bespoke solutions for commergial and not-for-profit orgamisations Its
philosophy is built around taking the Agile approach to project management,
developing personalised digital and mobile solutions based on a full
understanding of clients’ customer envirgnments and cultures

Totally Cornmunications (s helping te transform the digital landscape for its
chents by developing bespoke solutions that optimise hew they interact and
engage with customers These solutions are developed collaboratively with
both internal and external stakeholders - across the full spectrum of
business executives and target users - to create personalised tools that
meet customer needs and expectations

In the past decade, it has worked with a broad mix of commercial and not-
for-profit organisations - ranging from start-ups and SMES to multinational
comporations and international chares

Services encompass web development, content management systems and
social media integrabion, as well as mobule and web apphcation development.
It also includes creatve marketung solutions, software design, SEO and
analytics, support and hosting services

Totally Communications works in parinership with its chients, and walks hand-
in-hand with them along their ongoing journey towards digital optimisation



BUSINESS REVIEW

The Business Review should be read in conjunction with the Chairman’s Statement
which includes information about the Group’s business performance during the year
and an indication of the Group’s future prospects. A review of the Group’s financial
position is included in the Directors’ report.

Digital Marketing: Totally Communmications

2012 saw another strong year of top line sales with year on year growth
of 13% per cent, despite tough conditons within the marketplace

Performance highlights
M Revenues £988,000 (2011 £871,000)

W EBITDA £62,000 (2011 £152,000)
B Operating profit £33,000 (2011 £130,000)

Dunng the penod under review, there was sustainable organic top line
revenue growth across each of Totally Commurications’ three core busingss
activities of website & bespoke software development, enline marketing and
hosting maintenance & support

2012 saw close collaboration with Totally Health to deliver the significant
technical components to underpin the NHS Shared Decision Making project.
Totally Communications constructed the interactive website to house the 36
Patient Deciston Aids {PDA) and integrated its Content Management System
Pelorous to ensure the PDAs can be updated Motle App versions of each
PDA were constructed for both Android and 1Phane platiorms

Addionally, Totally Commumicatons constructed a genenc bespoke CRM
and patient-centnc Case Management System to support the workflows of
Totally Health's health coaches This platform integrated web and telephony,
enabling bath data secured via the web, as well as phone conversations via
Totally Health's disparate vartual call centre to be stored securely on the
NHS secure N3 network

Dunng the penod under review, Totally Communications strengthened its
market share of work within the not-for profit sector, with sigificant new
projects secured for both new as well as ewsting clients, highlights mclude

B A project for the War Memonals Trust where Totally Communications
constructed a online nteractive website {www warmemonalsonhine org.uk}
and supporting database system to track and manage all of the war
memaonals across the UK. This project was secured following an open
tender and multi-agency pitch

B A number of projects for the Health Foundation where Totally
Communications delivered a mobile version of thewr website, created
a new research database and self-support centre and integrated
emall marketing capabilites

W Extension to the Umited Synagogue's bespoke membership system
to incorporate integrated events management and youth
membership functionality

B Public Interest Law Alllance {Ireland}, Totally Commurications created
a database of case law as well as a mobile version of their onling
proposiions

B Cnsis, for their Cnsis at Chnstmas campaign, where Totally Communications
created a mobile attendance app for their volunteers at their homeless
centres across Londen

W Coram Children’s Legal Centre where Totally Communications delivered
a new website for the chanty

8 Bntish Group Inter-Parhamentary Unien (BGIPU) where Totally
Communicabons delivered a new website

Totally Communicatons also secured significant projects from a number of
prvate and public orgamisabans including one of Europe’s largest broadcasters
where Totally Communicabons was introcuced by its partner Layer3 Systems
and created a new web-enabled system to monitor and track viewing figures
across the network, web-based propositions were also created far
Bioceuticals, Get Paid, Tekiqo and Union Income Benefit,

Additionally, Rise Digital, launched in 2010 as a dedicated Online
Marketing division, saw revenues nearly double dunng the penod under
review Rise Digital specialises in the delivery of Search Engine
Optimisation, Pay per Cick and Social Media campaigns, and revenues
now represent over 25% of Jotally Communicabons' annual revenues

Andrew Margolis
Managmng Director (dunng the penod under review)
Totally Communications Lirmited




BUSINESS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Totally Health

The company’s pnncipal actmty 15 providing digital solutions to the healthcare
sector The company started business actmtes in February 2012

Performance highlights (2012)
B Revenues £769,000

B EBITDA -£253,000 (l0ss)
W Operating loss -£261,000

During late 2011, Totally announced that it had secured Lot 1 of the NHS
Midlands and East Shared Decision Making contract, worth £1 595m

{Inc VAT), with a contract inhabon date of February 2012 Shared Deciston
Making is an endenced-based method to empower people to take control of
their healthcare decistons The concept 15 written into the Health and Social
Care Bill and aims to empower patients o take control of decisions involved
in their long-term health Since many of these decisions are based within the
management of long-term condstions, this 15 seen as a key part of the
strategy to aid the £20bn reduction of NHS costs over the next five years

For the majonty of 2012, Totally Health focussed a significant amount of
resources In delivenng this Shared Decision Making contract, which resulted
in the creation of 36 Patient Decision Aids (PDAs), available online via an
interactive website, as well as via mobile apps), delivered under extremely
challenging umescales The project involved the formation of Medical Advisory
Groups for each PDA, which compnsed of a total of 350 sentor healthcare
professionals including many national chinical leads and semor surgeons
across specific disease areas The project also included the coordination of
a number of third-party suppliers including the Briush Medical Journal
Evidence Centre, Pnmal Pictures, and MC Saatchi Mobile and Kindling
Strategies to help create pabent facing evidence based content

During the penod under review, Totally Health created a virtual call centre,
a secure web-enabled patient-centnc case management system, and
regrunted a team of expenenced ¢limcal health coaches

Totally Health's health cgaches were used as an integral part of the Shared
Decision Making project to support patients 1n helping them make the right
decisians for themselves

Also dunng the penod under review, Totally Health signed an imbal prototype
contract with the NHS n Leicester to provide our health coaching services
to the most acute 50 patients with Chrorie Obstructive Pulmonary Disease
The health coaches augmented existing telecare services The initial results
were exremely positive, showing significant savings, resulung in further
discussions to extend the service provision

Post event reporting period

Dunng Q2 2013, the inital results of the prototype contract with Letcester were
announced, with in excess of £350,000 being directly saved by the use of
Totally Health’s health coaches These savings were achieved by supporting only
an extremely small number of patlents, and over only a 26 week penod Totally
Health subsequently announced an extenston 10 the contract, to provide health
coaching to additional ghti wn the same disease area

Andrew Margolis
Director, Totally Health

Jewish News and Media Group

The Group's UK publishing business was sold in May 2012 - for details
see note 23 to the financial statements




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their report and the financial statements for the year to

31 December 2012,

Pnncipal activities

The Group's pnncipal activities are the provision of digital marketing and
software development services (through Totally Communtications) and
innovative solubons to the healthcare sector (through Totally Health)

Totally Communications Limited 15 a digital marketing agency and software
development company which has provided website design and development
services, bespoke software development, consultancy, and intermet
marketing services to the not-for-profit and commercial sectors

Totally Health Lmited prowides bespake healthcare solutions for the
management of long term conditons Soluttens offered include clinical
health coaching, iInnovative software solutions and supporbing shared
decision making Totally Health developed 36 patient decision aids (Web,
Mobile & Pant} for the NHS as part of the National SDM programme Patent
decision aids are evidence-based, chmeally relevant resources to supplement
chnical consultations, supported by Heafth Coaching they help patients
make Informead decisions about their treatment options Totally Health has a
chinical health coaching team who have a pivotal role In managing long term
conditions Qur health coaches educate and encourage patients to take an
active role In their own health, bullding confidence and skills to bacome
better informed about their condiion

The Group's niche community media divisien was sold in 2012 -
for details see note 23 to the financial statements

Business review and future developments

The review of the year's operations, trading cutlook and future developments
15 contained in the Chairman's statement and the Business Review on
page 2 and 7 1o B respectively

Results and dividends

The results for the year are set out on page 18 No intenm dwidend has
been paid and the Directors do not recommend a final dividend

Share capital

Details of the changes in the authonsed and the 1ssued share capital are
set outin note 18 to the financial statements

Financial summary

Group turnover from continuing operations in the year to 31 December 2012
increasad year on year by 86 percent.to £1 62 million (2011 £0 87 million)

Group EBITDA from continuing cperations for the penod was £(0 52} milion
{2011 £(0 06) million)

Group operating loss from continuing operations for the penod was £0 55
milign {2011 loss of £0 08 million)

Cash flow and net debt

The Group cash flow statement 1s set out on page 22 Highlights include
cash utihsed by operations of £144k (2011 £14k utlised), cash inflow
from cisposal of subsidianes of £210k {2011 £nil}, net proceeds of
shares issued of £515k (2011 £mil) and £506k improvement in the
Group's net funds posrtion at 31 December 2012 to £50k 1n hand from
£456k net debt.

Liquidity and funding

At 31 December 2012 the Group had net current liabilibes of £497k down
from £508k n the pnor year The Group maintains iquidity through the
careful management of the working capital cycle the use of working capital
generated through normal business actvities

The recent transition from Pnmary Care Trusts (PCTs) to CCGs in Apnl 2013
has resulted 1n considerable intemal regrganisation within the NHS In
particular for Totally this has affected the management of budgets and the
contract decision making pracess with the new NHS bodies

Totally 1s confident that, as the new CCGs and other NHS bodies bed down,
the award of contracts will accelerate in the second half of 2013 However
in the short term this has resulted in a reduction in expected revenues for
the Group i the current financial year As a result of this the Board 15
exptonng options to strengthen the Company's balance sheet, one of which
15 likely to be the 1ssue of new equity to ensure that the Compary has
adequate resources 1o implement its business plan



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUED

The Group 18 In discussions with finance providers 1o ensure that the Group
has sufficient funding to meet its working capital requirements As at the
date of this announcement none of these facilites have yet been agreed

The Directors have prepared projected cash flow information for the penod
ending 12 months from the date of their approval of these financial
statements as patt of a three year business plan Some of the items of
expenditure included within the forecasts are discrettonary, and are under
the control of the Directors Including these items of expenditure, the
forecasts indicate that addibonal funding of approximately £600,000 will
be required within the next six months to deliver the business plans

The Directors are in discussions with ¢urrent and potential new investors to
raise new equity to provide the necessary funding The Directors believe that
the trading forecasts are reabstic and that a fundraising will be able to be
completed, and accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis However due to the need to identify investors and
complete a placing successfully, there 15 an uncertainty which may cast
doubt about the ability of the Group and the Company to continue as a
going cancemn Inherenty, there ¢an be no certanty 1n these matters, but
the Directors believe that the geing concern basis of preparation continues
to be appropnate

Financial position

Overall the net liabiliues position of the Group has increased by £6k dunng
the year to a position of £462K a1 31 December 2012

Employee matters

Quallty and Integrity of personnel

The Group has a core of key employees with strong market and product
knowledge but has always sought to position itself as not reliant on
individuals but ensunng that the knowledge and responsibilities are shared
Our business still depends hawever on the quality of our staff and this
involves risks of retention and of being able to recruit at our current high
standards We mitigate this nsk by seeking to provide the environment and
assistance that will aid the development of cur emplovees and improve the
retention prospects, which we also seek to do through employee benefits,
incentive schemes, share plans and career opportunities where possibie

10

Disabled persons

The Group 1$ committed to equal opportunity of employment and all
employment decisions are based on ment, qualfications and abilibes

The Group ts commutted to providing a working environment that 15 free from
all forms of discnmination and harassment. The Group will employ disabled
persons where they appear to be switable for a particular vacancy and every
effort 1s made to ensure that they are given full and fair consideration when
such vacancies anse The number of disabled persans employed by the
Group was Nit (2011 Nily

Health and safety

It 1s the objective of the Group to ensure the health and safety of its
employees and of any other persons who could be affected by its
operations It 1s the Group's policy to provide warking environments which
are safe and without nsk to health and provide information, instruction,
traintng and superwision to ensure the health and safety of its employees

As a mimimum, all Group companies are required to comply with all
applicable local legislation in employment matiers

Environmental matters

The Group 1s committed to supporting best practice and complying with
all relevant legislation m relation to the production of Its products and to
emaronmental 1ssues The Group 1s in regular dialegue with supphers in
relation to new products and processes, and emvironmental 1Ssues are
considered In the decision-making process

Directors
Dr Michael Sinclatr (Non-executive Chairman}

Andrew Margolis

Denald Baladasan (Finance Director, appeinted 28 Nov 2012)
Danlel Assor (Resigned 30 Nov 2012)

Clare Wexier (Appointed 15 May 2012, Resigned 15 Feb 2013)
Wendy Lawrence (Chief Executive, appointed 2 May 2013)
George Rolls (Non-executive dwrector, appointed 3 June 2013)




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUED
Directors and their interests
The interests of the Directors who held office dunng the year in the share capital of the Company were as foliows
Warrants to subscribe Warrants to subscnbe |
for Ordinary shares Ordinary shares for Ordinary shares Ordinary shares
of 1p each held of 1p each held of 1p each held of 1p each held

31 December 2012 31 December 2012 31 December 2011 31 December 2011
Dr Michael Sinclair (non-executive Chairman}™* - 14,509,791 35,000,000 14,509,791
Andrew Margohis - 2,772,102 25,171,905 2,772,102
Daniel Assor (resigned 30/11/2012) - 1,576,436 41,504,776 2,554,214

*Dr Sinclair’s interests are held by mm personally (both directly and through vanous pension arrangements) and by Sinclair Montrose Trust Lmited Sinclair Montrose Trust

Limited 15 & campany in which Dr Sinclair and his immediate famity have a controlling interest

Clare Wexler and Donald Baladasan held no shares or warrants dunng 2012

According to the register of Birectors’ Interests, no nghts to subsenbe for shares in or debentures of the Company or any other Group company wese
granted to any of the Directors or thewr immediate families, or exercised by them, during the financial year (except as indicated below)

Number of optians
Granted/ Exercise pnce Date from which
At start of year (surrendered) Atend of year Pence Exercisable
Daniel Assor (resigned 30/11/2012) 5,450,000 - 5,450,000 10 270772009
Andrew Margolis 5,125,000 - 5,125,000 10 08/10/2009
Substantial interests
The Company has been notified, as at 30 May 2013, of the following interests in 3 per cent or more of the 205,624,615 ordinary shares in 1ssue
Ordinary shares Percentage
JIM Nominees Limited 96,728,843 4704 .
Chase Nominees Limited 9,872,656 480
TD Direct Investing Nominees (Europe) Limited 8,804,239 428
HSBC Client Holdings Nominee (UK) Limited 7,024,205 342
Forest Nominees Limited 7,018,000 341
Mr Leopold Noe 6,666,666 324
Grand Rabbi Yrzchok Aharon Korff of Boston 6,514,000 317

Creditor payment policy

It 1s the Company’s policy to abide by terms of payment agreed with suppliers In many cases the terms of payment are as stated in the supplier's own
hiterature In other cases the terms of payment are determined by specific wniten or oral agreemeant. The number of supplier days represented by trade

creditors at 31 December 2012 was 60 days (2011 55 days)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUED

Financial instruments

The Group's financial mstruments pnncipally compnsed of bank borrowings
It 1s the Group’s policy that no trading (n financial instruments shall be
undertaken The bank borrowings have been repaid by the group at December
2012 and as at 31 December 2012 the Group had no bank borrowings

Pnncipal nsks and uncertainties

The main nsks ansing from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate
nsk, supply nsk, credit nsk iquidity nsk and cash flow nsk The Board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these nsks and they are summansed
below These policies have remained unchanged throughout the year

Interest rata risk

The Group financed 1ts operations dunng 2012 through a mixture of
shareholders’ funds and bomowings The Group borrowed pnncipally in Stering
at floating rates of interest. At the vear end the Group had no bank borowings

Credit sk

The Group’s credit nsk primanly relates to trade and other recevables and
accrued ingome The amounts presented i the statement of financial
posion are net of allowances for doubtful recewables, esumated by the
Group's management

Customer credit nsk is managed by each business unit subject to the
Group’s established policy, procedures and centrols relating to customer
credit management. Credit imits are established for all customers and are
based Inter alia on credit checks Qutstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored

Concentration of credit nsk with respect to trade recevables 1s hmited in
Totally Communications due to its customer base being large and unrelated
Totally Health does trade with a small number of NHS Trust customers but
the Directors consider that the credit nsk 1s minimised by contractual
arrangements which require customers 10 make stage payments as service
delivery progresses, Totally Health's expenence of on time payments
received so far and the government backing being given to these initiatives

Liguldity risk and cash flow risk

Cash balances and the working capital cycle are managed so as to
maximise interest earned and minimise interest paid, while maintaining
the hquidity requirement of the business When seeking borrowings, the
Directors constder the commercial terms available and, in consultation
with their adwsors, consider whether such terms should be fixed or
vanable and are appropnate to the business
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The Group would normally expect that sufficient cash i1s generated in the
operating cycle to meet contractual cash flows through effective cash
management. However as mentioned earier the reorganisation in the NHS has
affected the Group’s working capital cycle The Directors continually monitor the
situation through the careful management of creditors and working capital

Research and development

Totally Communications Limited 1s engaged in ongaing research and
development aimed at website and software development,

Post balance sheet events

After the end of the reporting penod holders of 56,838,340 Warrants
subscnbed for 56,838,340 ordinary shares of 1p each on 14 January 2013
at an exercise pnce of 1p per share The net consideration received by the
company from this 1ssue of shares was £539,000

Political and chantable contnbutions

The Campany made neither political contnbutions, nor donatiens to
chanties, dunng the year

Disclosure of information to the auditor

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directars’ Report
confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there 15 no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and each
director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

On 21 December 2012, the auditor Royce Peeling Green Limited, transferred
the trade and assets of its London business to a newly formed entity RPG
Crouch Chapman LLP which was established for this pumose and to acquire
the business and assets of Crouch Chapman, another firm of Chartered
Accountants On 16 May 2013 Royce Peeling Green Limited resigned as
auditor to the company and the directors appointed RPG Crouch Chapman
LLP to fill the vacancy A resolution to re-appoint RPG Crouch Chapman LLP
as auditor will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

By order of theg/ .
Donald ;.aladasan
Director




BOARD REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

As an AIM listed company, Totally PLC 15 not required to comply with the
Corporate Governance Code of June 2010 {the Code) or the updated 2012
Code The Board 1s accountable to the Company's shareholders for good
corporate govemance This statement descnbes how the principles of
corporate governance considered by the Board to be appropnate to a
group of this size have been applied

The workings of the Board and its committees

During the year the Board compnsed Dr Michae! Sinclair (the non-executive
Chairman}, Mr Daniel Assor {Resigned 30 Nov 2012), Mr Andrew Margolis,
the managing director of Totally Communications, Mrs Clare Wexler
(Appointed 15 May 2012 and resigned 15 Feb 2013) and Mr Donald
Baladasan (Apponted 28 Nov 2012) The Board 1s responsible to
shareholders for the proper management of the Group A statement of the
Directors’ respensibilities tn respect of the accounts 1S set out on page 15

The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to it for
deciston It meets at least ten times a year, reviewing trading performance,
ensunng adequate funding, seting and monitonng strategy, examining
acquisition opportunities and reporbing to shareholders The non-executive
Chairman has a particular responsibiiity to ensure that the strategies
proposed by the executive directors are fully considered and also ensures
that the directors take independent professional advice as required

The Remuneratton Committee and the Audit Committee are compnsed
exclusively of the non-executive Chairman and Company Secretary
Dunng the penod they were as follows

Dr Michael Sinclair
Paul Stacey

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commuttee 15 responsible for making recommendations to
the Board, within agreed terms of reference, on the Company’s framework of
executive remuneration and i1s cost. The Cormittee determines the contract
terms, remuneration and other benefits for each of the executive directors,
in¢luding performance-related bonus schemes, grant of share options,
pension nghts and compensation payments The Board itself determenes the
remuneration of the non-executive directors and Company Secretary

Further detatls of the Company's policies on remuneration and semice
contracts are set cut on page 14

Audit Committee |

The Augit Committee prowides a forum for reporting by the Group’s external
auditors The Commitiee 15 responsible for reviewing a wide range of
matters, including half year and annual results before their submission to
the Board and for monitonng the internal controls that are in force to
safeguard shareholders’ investrnent and the Group's assets

The Cominittee advises the Baard on the appointment of external auditors
and on their remuneration for both audit and non-audit work, and reviews
the nature, scope, results and cost effectiveness of the audit and the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors

Nominations Commuittes

There is no formal nominations committee but the Board contrels and
approves alt semor appointments based on standard recrutment practices
and recommendations from the non-executive directors

Internal control and nsk management

The Board 1s responsible for establishing and mamntaiming the Group’s

financial and nan-financial controls Internal control systems are designed

to meet the particular needs of the Group and the nsks to which it 1s

exposed and by their nature ¢an prowde reasenable but not absolute

assurance against matenal misstatement or loss |

Each executive director has responsibility for specific aspects of the Group's !
affairs The executive directors constitute the management committee which
meets regularly to discuss day-to-day operatonal matters

The key procedures which the Directors have established with a view to
providing effective internal control are set out below

Corporate accounting and procedures

Responsibility levels are communicated throughout the Group, setting out
the ethos of the Group, delegation of authonty and authonsation levels,
segregation of duttes and other control procedures together with accounting
poheies and procedures

Quality and integnity of personnel

The competence angd integnty of personnel are ensured through high
recruitment standards and subsequent traiming High quality of personnel 1s
seen as an essential part of the control environment.
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BOARD REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CONTINUED

Identification of business nsks

The Board 15 responsible for identifying the major business nsks faced
by the Group and for determining the appropnate course of action to
manage those nsks

Budgetary process

Each year the Board approves the annual budget and key sk areas are
identified Performance 1s monitored and relevant action taken throughout
the year through the menthly reporting to the Board of vanances from
budgat, updated forecasts for the year and information ¢n the key nsk areas

investment appraisal

Capital expenditure 1s regulated by the budgetary process and
authonsation levels

Going concem

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on a going concemn
basis, as explained in Note 3

Directors' remuneration

The Board is responsible for an overall remuneration package for executive
directors and other semor executives capable of achieving the Group's
objectives and approved by the remuneration committee The remuneration
package is deslgned to attract, retain and motivate executive directors of
the right cahibre
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Fees

The fees for non-executive directors are determined by the Board within the
hmits stipulated in the Articles of Association The non-executive directors
are not involved n any discussions or decisions about their own
remuneration Details of amounts received by the Directors dunng the year
ended 31 December 2012 are set out In note 7 to the financial statements

Contracts of service

The current executive directors, Andrew Margolis, Wendy Lawrence and
Donalg Baladasan, have a service contract with the Company which can be
terminated with a notice period of one year (Andrew Margolis) and with a
notice period of s&x months {Wendy Lawrence and Donald Baladasan) by
elther party The Company considers that this 1s appropnate fer the
executive directors

Share options

Details regarding share options are set out in notes 18 and 19 to the
financial statements




STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annuat Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the group
financial statements 1n accordance with Internatonal Financlal Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Uron and the company
finaneial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice} Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the
group for that penod The Directors are also required to prepare financial
statements in accordance with the rules of the London Stock Exchange for
companies trading secunties on the Alternative Investment Market.

In prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are required to
B select suitable accounung palicies and then apply them consistently,

B make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

A state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the Eurgpean Union, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

B prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s
ihappropnate to presume that the company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that
are sufficlent to show and explain the company’s transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the company
and the group and enabte them to ensure that the financtal statements
comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsibie for safeguarding the assets of the company and the group and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other rregulantes

Website publication

The Directors are responsibte for ensunng the annua! repornt and the
financial statements are made available on a website Financial statements
are published on the company's website i accordance with legisiation in
the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements, which may vary from legistation in other junsdictions

The maintenance and integnty of the company’s website 1s the responsibility

of the Directors The Directors’ responsibility also extends to the ongeing
integnty of the financial statements contaned theretn

Andrew Margolis
Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TOTALLY PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Totally PLC for the year ended
31 December 2012, which compnse the Consolidated income statement,
the Consol:dated statement af changes in equity, the Consolidated
statement of financial pesitien, the Company statement of financial
position, the Consohidated statement of cash flows and the related notes
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation
of the group finangial statements 1s applicable taw and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
The financial reportng framework that has been applied in preparatton of
the parent company financial statements 1s applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 15 made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and our
engagement letter Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and audrtors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsituliies set out
on page 15, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements
In accordance with applicable law and Intemational Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditng
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or emor This inciudes an assessment of whether the accounting policies
are appropnate to the group’s and the parent company’s circumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of significant accounting esimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial
and non-financizl information in the Annual Report and Financiak Statements
to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited finangial statements

If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the imphications fer our report.
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Opinion on financial statements
In our optnien

W the financial statements give a true and far view of the state of the
group's and the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and
of the group’s loss for the year then ended,

B the group finanoial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

B the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with UK GAAP and as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

M the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
provistons of the Companies Act 2008

Emphasis of matter - going concem

In forming our opimon on the financial statements, which 1s not modified,
we have considered the adequacy of the disclosures made in note 3 to the
financial statements concermng the uncertainty as to the adequacy of the
future funding of the Company and Group The Group has identifted a
requirement to raise additional funds through the 1ssue of new equity to
existing and potential investors, the ssue of which requires the Directors to
identify investors and complete a placing successfully which will require the
consent of shareholders in general megting These condiions, along with
the other matters explained in note 3 to the financial statements, ndicate
the existence of a material uncerntaimty which may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s and the Companys ability to continue as a going concermn
The financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if
the Group and the Company were unable to continue as a going concem

Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the
Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the directors’ report for the financial

year for which the financral statements are prepared 15 consistent with the
financial statements




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TOTALLY PLC

CONTINUED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in gur apinton

@ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company,
or retums adequate for our audsit have not been receved fram branches
not visited by us, or

B the parent company's financial statements are not In agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

A certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not
made, or

W we have not receved all of the information and explanations we require

e G G

Paul Randall {Seror Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of RPG Crouch Chapman LLP
Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor

62 Wilson Street

Londen

EC2A 2BU

e day. WN
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 2011
Continuing operations Note £000 £000
Revenue 5 1,619 871
Cost of sales {988) (395)
Gross profit 633 476
Admimistrative expenses (1,150) (539)
Loss before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (517} (63)
Deprectation 11 {13) {4)
Amortisation 10 {25) (1B)
Operating loss 6 (555) (85)
Share issue costs 18 {54) -
Finance costs 9 {38) {25)
Loss before taxation (647) (110)
Income tax 8 - -
Loss for the year from continuing operations (647) (110}
Peofit/{loss) for the year from discontinued aperations 23b 59 {39}
Loss for the year attributable to the equity shareholders of the parent company {588} (149}
All comprehensive income for continuing operations ts shown above, equivalent information for discontinued activities 1S shown in note 23
Comparative resufts have been restated to re-analyse the results of discontinued actvities

2012 2011
Earnings per share Note Pence Pence
Basic and dikuted
Continuing operations 18 (0 69) 012)
Discontinued operations 18 007 (0 04)
Tota! {0 62) (016}

The accompanying notes on pages 23 to 43 form part of the financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Share
Share premium Profit and Equity share-
capital account loss account holders deficit
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2011 1,124 3,353 {4,798) (321)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - {149) (149)
Credit on 1ssue of warrants - - 14 14
At 1 Janvary 2012 1,124 3,353 {4,933) (456)
Tota! comprehensive loss for the year - - (534} {534)
Issue of share capital 569 - (54} 515
Credit on 1ssue of warrants - - 13 13
At 31 December 2012 1,693 3,353 (5,508) {462)

The accompanying notes on pages 23 to 43 form part of the financia! statements

19




CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 2011
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Non current assets
Intangible fixed assets 10 11 29
Property, plant and equipment 11 24 23
35 52
Current assets
Amounts recoverable on contracts 13 154 -
Trade and other recevables 14 363 606
Cash and cash equivalents 50 134
867 740
602 792

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 {1,064) (658)
Financial lrabilities 16 - (590)

{1,064) {1,248)
Net current biabilitles {497) (508)
Net liabilities (482) (456)
Shareholders’ equity
Called up share capitat 18 1,693 1,124
Share premium aceount 18 3,353 3,353
Retamed earnings 18 {5,508) (4,933)
Equity shareholders’ deficit {462) {456)

it ts were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 lune 2013 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

-

Donald Baladasan
Director Director

Totally PLC
Company registraton No 3780101 {England and Wales)

The accempanying notes on pages 23 to 43 form part of the financial statements
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 2011
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Non current assets
Investments 12 155 -
Property, plant and equipment 11 1 i
156 1
Current assets
Trade and other recewvables 14 85 2
Cash and cash equivalents 15 22
100 24
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 15 (1,909) {1,580)
Shart term horrowings 16 - {590}
Total cument Uabilitles {1,908) {2,170)
Net liablilities {1,653) (2,145)
Shareholders’ equity
Called up share capital 20 1,693 1,124
Share premium account 20 3,353 3353
Retained eamings 20 (6,699) {6,622)
Equity shareholders’ deficit 20 {1,653) {2.145)
Theae financ ments were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 June 2013 and were signed on its behalf by

F B

Donald Baladasan
Director Director

Totally PLC
Company registratton No 3780101 (England and Wales})

The accompanying notes on pages 23 to 43 form part of the financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 2011
Note £000 EQO0
Cash flows from cperating activities
Operating loss {555) (85)
Option and warrants charge 19 13 14
Amortisation and deprecialion 10/11 35 22
Movement in amounts recoverable on contracts (154) -
Movement in trade and other recevables (211} 5
Movement in trade and other payables 798 74
Cash {utilised)/generated from continuing operatlons (74} 30
Cash utilised by discontinued operations 25 (70} (44)
Net cash flows from operating activities {144) (14)
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of intangble fixed assets 10 (£} -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 11 (28) {15)
Cash receved from cisposal of subsidiary net of costs 23¢c 210 -
Net cash flows from investing activities 173 (15}
Cash inflow/{outflow) before financing 29 {29}
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (38) (25)
Issue ¢f share capital, net 515 -
Net cash flows from financing activitles 4717 (25)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 506 (54)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (456) (402)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 16 50 (4586}
Cash and cash eguivalents comprise
Cash at bank 50 134
Bank overdrafts - (590}
50 (456)

Comparative cash flows have been restated to re-analyse the cash flows of discontinued activittes

The accompanying notes on pages 23 to 43 form part of the finantial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

1. General information

Totally PLC 15 a pubh¢ imited company (*Company™) incorparated in the
United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 (registration number
3870101) The Company 15 domictled tn the United Kingdom and its
registered address 1$ Unit BDO Highgate Studios, 53-79 Highgate Road,
London NWS 1TL. The Company’s Ordinary Shares are traded on the
AlM Market of the London Stock Exchange ("AIM™)

The Group's pnrcipal actvities have been the provision of scftware
development and digital marketing services, prowided by the subsidiary
Totally Commumication At the beginning of 2012 the group estabhished
a new subsidiary, Totally Health, which provides digital selutions to the
healthcare sector The Group had actmues of niche commumity media
activities unti the Jewish News was sold in May 2012 The Company's
princepal activity Is to act as a holding company for its subsiciaries

2. Authonsation of financial statements and
statement of compliance with IFRS

The Group's financial statements for the penod ended 31 December 20112
were authonsed for 1ssue by the Board of Directors and the balance sheets
were signed on the Board's behalf by Andrew Margohs on 21 June 2013

The Group's financ:al statements have been prepared with IFRS and
Internatienal Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (*IFRIC™)
Interpretations as endorsed by the European Unien, and with those parts
of the Compares Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under
IFRS The Company's financial statements have been prepared under UK
GAAP and as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 no
Income statement or cash flow statement is presented for the Company
The Company made a loss of £90,000 for the year ended 31 December
2012 (2011 loss £240,000)

3. Basis of preparation

The financial year reprasents the 365 days to 31 December 2012, and
the prior financial year, 365 days to 31 December 2011 The financial
statements are presented in sterding and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand pounds (£000) except when otherwise indicated

The accounting policies set out In note 4 have been applied consistently
to all penods presented in these consclidated financial statements

The financial statements are prepared on a going cencern basis which
the Directors believe to be apprapnate for the following reasons

The Group is In discussions with finance prowders to ensure that the

Group has sufficient funding to meet its working capstal requirements
As at the date of this announcement none of these facihes have yet
been agreed

The Directors have prepared projected cash flow information for the penod
ending 12 months from the date of their approval of these financial
statements as part of a three year business plan Some of the items of
expenditure Included within the forecasts are discretionary, and are under
the control of the Directors Including these items of expenditure, the
forecasts Indicate that addiional funding of approximately £600,000 will
be required within the next six months to deliver the business plans

The Directors are i discussions with current and potential new investors
to raise new equity to prowide the necessary funding

The Directors believe that the trading forecasts are realistic and that a
fundraising will be able to be completed, and accordingly, the financial
statements have been prepared on a going cencem basis However due to
the need to identify vestors and complete a placing sucgesstully, there s
an uncertainty which may cast doubt about the ability of the Group and
the Company to continue as a gning concem

Inherently, there can be no certainty In these matters, but the Directors
believe that the going concem basls of preparation continues to be
appropnate

4. Summary of significant accounting policies

Basls of consolidation

The Group's financial statements include the results of the Company and
all ks subsidianes, all of which are prepared up to the same date as the
parent company Unform accounting pohcies are adopted by all
companies In the Group

Subsldiaries

Subsidianes are all enthies over which the Group has the power 1o govern
the financial and operaung policies generally accompanying a sharehalding
of more than one half of the voting nghts The results of subsidianes are
included tn the Group tncome statement from the date of acquisiton untl
the date that such control ceases Intercompany transactians and balances
between Group companies are elminated upon consolidation

Revenue recognition - Totally Communications

Revenue ts recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the econemic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

4. Accounting policies continued

Revenue represents the amounts, excluding valued added tax, denved from
advertising, marketng and technical services Revenue s recognised in the
profit and loss account on the accruals basis

Revenue from technical services 1s recognised as contract actvity
progresses to the extent that revenue can be reliably measured Hosting and
maintenance income within techrucal services 15 spread on a straight line
basis over the penod to which the hosting or maintenance penod relates

Revenus recognition - UK publishing
Revenue from adverusing 1s recognised an the date of the specific
publication in which the advert 15 mcluded

Where advertising revenue 15 ganerated both via magazing adverbising
{pnnt media) and online advertising, the accounting policy is to recognise
revenue on the {atest publicabion date, whether this 15 onhine or published
via pnnt media

Revenue recognition - Digital solutions for Healthcare

Turnover 1s generated by providing digital services and solutions to the
healthcare sector The revenue 15 generated through services that are
provided on short term and long term contracts

Profit is recognised on long-term contracts, if the final cutcome can be
assessed with reasonable certainty, by including 1n the income statement
tumnover and related costs as contract actmity progresses Turnover 1s
calculated as that proporton of total contract value which costs to date
bear to total expected costs for that contract.

Finance costs
Finance ¢osts compnse interest payable on the bank overdrafts and are
recognised on an accruals basis

Intangible fixed assats

Computer software is camed at cost tess accumulated amortisation and any
impairment loss Externally acquired compurier software and software licences
are capitalised at the costs incurred to acquire and bnng into use the specific
software These assets are cons:dered to have finite usefu! lives and are
armorused on a straight line basis over the estmated useful economic lives of
each of the assets, considered to be between three and five years Computer

software 15 camed at cost less accumulated amortsation and any wmparment

loss. Costs relating to development of computer software are capitatised once
the recognition cntena are met When the software 15 available for its intended
use, these costs are amortised over the estimated useful life of the software
The amortsation of Intangible fixed assets 1s shown as a separate line in the
consaolidated income statement
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The camyng values of intangible assets are rewewed for impairment
whenever events or changes In circumstances indicate the camrying value
may not be recoverable

Property, plant and equipment

Furriture and equipment 1s camed at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any recognised impairment in value Cost comprises the aggregate
amount paid to acquire asset and includes costs directly attnbutable to
making the asset capable of operating as intended

Depreciation 1s calculated to wnite down the cost of the assets to therr
residual vatues by equal instalments over the estimated useful economic
ives as follows

Computer equipment - 2and5years
Fixtures and fithngs - 2and 3 vyears
Short feasehold property - lease term

The assets’ residual values, useful lves and methods of depreciation are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropnate on an annual basis An item of
furniture and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal Any gain or loss
ansing on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) i1s included

tn the income statement in the penod that the asset s derecognised

Impalrment of non current assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company revews amounts of its intangible
fixed assets and property, plant and equipment 10 determine whether there
15 any indication that these assels have suffered an impairment {oss If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets, which 1s the
higher of its fair vatue less costs to sell and its value in use, I1s estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss Where the asset does
not generate cash flows that are ndependent from other assets, the
company estmates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(“CGU™) to which the asset betongs For non current assets excluding
goodwill, the CGU Is deemed to be cash generating asset or the trading
company whichever 1s the smaller CGU For goodwill, the CGU 1s deemed

to be the business acquired

An impairment charge 1s recogmsed 1n the income statement in the penod
in which it occurs Where an impairment 19ss subsequently reverses due to
a change In its onginal estimate, the carrynng amount of the asset 1s
increased to the rewised estimate of s recoverable amount The tncreased
armount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciabon, had no iImpairment loss been recognised
for the asset in pnor pencds




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

4. Accounting policies continued

Amounts recoverable on contracts
Amounts recoverable on contracts represent the costs of Totally Health
contracts in progress at the balance sheet date, less progress bilhings te date

Trade and other receivables

Trade recewvables, which are generally received on end of month following
terms, are recognised and carned at the lower of their onginal tvoiced
value and recoverable amount, Proviston 1S made when 1t 1s hikely that the
balance will not be recovered in full Balances are wntten off when the
probabehty of recovery 1S considered remote

Cash and cash aquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet compnse cash at bank and
short-term deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or less Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Company’s cash management are included as components of cash and
cash equivalents for the purposes of the cash flow statement

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recogmsed at onginal ¢ost.

Forelgn currencles transactions

Transactions denominated In foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and habiliues
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated
at the exchange rate ruling at that date Foreign exchange differences
ansing on translation are recognised in the Income statement

Leased assets

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer
substanually all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group All other
leases are classtied as aperating leases

The Company has a short lease on its premises This 1s accounted for as an
‘operaung lease’ and the rental charges are charged to the income
statement on a straight line basis over the life of the lease Other operating
leases are treated In the same manner

Internally generated Intangible assets - research and

development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities 15 recognised as an expense n the
penod in which 1t 15 incurred An internally-generated intangible asset
ansing from the Group’s technology development 1s recognised only if alf
of the following conditions are met

B An asset 15 created that can be idenbfied,

B It 1s probable that the asset created will generate future econgmic
benefits, and

B The development cost of the asset can be measured reliably

Internally generated intangible assets are amortised on a straight-ine basis
over their useful economic lives Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure 1S recognised as an
expense In the penod i which it1s incurred

Share-based payments

The Group provides benefits to employees {including Directors) of the Group
In the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services in exchange for shares or nghts over shares (‘equity-settled
transactions'’) The fair value of the employee services rendered 15 determined
by reference to the farr value of the shares awarded or options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting condiions All share options
are valued using an optien-pncing moded {Black-Scholes) This fair value 1s
charged to the income statement over the vesting penod of the share-based
payment scherne, with the corresponding increase In equity

The value of the charge 15 adjusted in the income statement over the
remainder of the vesting penod to reflect expected and actual levels of
options vesting, with the corresponding adjustment made in equity

Income taxes

Current iIncome tax assets and labihties are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation authonties based on tax
rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date Deferred income tax s recognised using the balance sheet
Irability method, providing for temporary differences between the tax bases
and the accounting bases of assets and labilites Deferred income tax 1s
calculated on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to
applying the penod when the liabiity 15 settled of the asset 15 realised,
based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
year end date

Deferred income tax habilites are recognised for all temporary differences,
except for an asset or hability in a transaction that 15 not a business
combination and at the bme of the transaction, affects neither the
accountng profit nor taxable profit or loss

Deferred income tax 15 charged or credited to the income statement, except
when 1t relates to items charged or credited to equity, in which case the
deferred tax 15 also dealt with in equity Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are offset against each ather only when the Company has a
legally enforceable nght to do so
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4, Accounting policies continued

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it s probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utiised

Use of assumptions and estimates

The Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and habilibes,
income and expenses The resulung accounting esbmates calculated using
these judgements and assumptions will, by defintion, seldom equal the
related actual results but are based on histoncal expenence and
expectations of future events The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the penod in which the estmate is revised if the revision
effects only that penod, or in the penod of revision and future penods If the
revision affects both current and future penods

The estmates and assumption that have a significant effect on the amounts
recognised In the financial statements are those related to establishing
depreciation and amortisation penods for the Company and the estmates
in relation to future cash flows and discount rates utilised in the impairment
testing of Intangible and tangible fixed assets

Change In accounting policles

a) New standards and interpretations effective from 1 January 2012

The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations
are mandatory for the first tme 10 this accountng penod

W Amengdments to IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments Disclosures
B Amendments to I1AS 12 - Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets

B Amendments to I1AS 1 - Severe Hypennflation and Remaoval of Fixed dates
for First Time Adopters

As of the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following
Standards and Interpretations which have not been applied n these
financial statements were in 155ue but not yet effective

B IFRS 9, Financial Instruments was 1ssued in November 2009 The standard
15 effective for annual penods, beginning on or after 1st January 2015,
with earlier apphcation permitted The adoptton of this standard 1S
expected to have limuted impact on the classification and measurement
of financial statements

B Amendment to 1AS 32 (Dec 2011) - Offseting Financial Liabihties
Effective 1st January 2014 The adopton of this standard in future
penods 15 not expected to have a matenal impact on the financial
statements of the Company
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M Amendment to IFRS 7 (Dec 2011) - Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Finangial babilimes Effective st January 2013 The adeption
of this standard 1n future penods 15 not expected to have a matenal
impact on the financial statements of the Company

B 1AS 19 (revised June 2011) - Employee Benefits Effective 1st January
2013 The adoption of this standard in future periods 1$ not expected to
have a matenal impact on the financial statements of the Company

M IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement Effective on 1st January 2013
The adoption of this standard may impact on disctosures in the financial
statements in future perods

W IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interest in Other Entiies Effective 1st January
2013 The adoption of this standard may impact on disclosures in the
financial statements in future penods

B IFRS 11 - Jont Arrangements Effectve on 1st January 2013 The
adeption of this standard may impact on cisclosures i the financiat
statements in future penods

M IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements Effective on 1st January
2013 The adoption of this standard may impact on disclosures in the
financial statements in future penods

H IAS 28 - {revised May 2011) - Investments n Associated and Joint
Ventures Effective on 1st January 2013 The adoption of this standard in
future penods 1 not expected to have a material impact on the finanoial
statements of the Company

W 1AS 27 - (revised May 2011} - Separate Financial Statements Effectve
on 1st January 2013 The adoption of this standard in future penods is
not expected to have a matenal impact on the financial statements of
the Company

B IFIC 20 - Stnpping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
Effective on 1st January 2013 The adoption of this standard in future
penads I1s not expected to have a matenal impact on the financial
statements of the Company

M IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and I1AS 27 (amended) - lvestment Entities Effective
on 1st January 2014 The adophion of this standard in future perods
could have a matenal impact on the financial statements of the Company
In respect of the consolidation of the Company’s subsidianes The
Company has not yet fully assessed the impact that adoption of
Investment Entities will have on the financial statements

W Consolidated Financial Statements, Jont Amangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entihes Transiton Guidance {effective 1 January 2013)

W Annual iImprovements 2009-2011 cycle (effectve 1 January 2013)

The adoption of the above standards s not expected to have a matenal
effect on Totally PLC consolidated financial statements




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

5. Segmental analysis - operating segments

The chuef operating dectsion maker {"CODM") for the purpose of IFRS 815
the executive management team - The Group Chief Executive Officer and the
Directors of subsidiary undertalings The Group operates in a number of
different markets and considers that the presentation of financial resutts on
a goods and services basis Is the most appropnata way to demonstrate the
performance of the Group For the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of performance, the CODM regularly reviews informatton based
on the goods and services at a revenue and EBITDA level

The Group considers there to be the following reportable operating
segments orgamised around goods and services

Digttal marketing - consists of Totally Communications’ activittes which
have three main service sectars being website and software design &
development, consultancy & systems integrauon and onling marketing

Digital solutions to the healthcare sector - consists of Totally
Health's achwties

Head office costs - these are central costs that are offset by intemal cost
recovenes from the Group's operating businesses and by sundry income
which 1 not attnbutable to any of the Group's operations

The UK publishing operation was discontinued in 2012 The UK publishing
business consisted of the Jewish News & Media Group which publishes on and
offtne media for the UK's Jewish community including a weekly newspaper
‘Jewish News', quarterly lifestyle and Celebrations magaznes, ‘Pulse’ and
TotallylewishSimchas, a community portal, www Totallyfewish com’ and an
annual Wedding exhibition, TotallyJewishSimchas Live This operating segment
was sold in May 2012 The segmental informaten reportad in this note does
not include any amounts for this discontinued operation which s desenbed

1n more details in note 23

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable
segments The Group's management reporting and controtling systems use
the accounting palicies that are the same as those referred to in Note 4

Segmental analysls - segment measures

The Group measures the performance of its aperating segments through a
measure of segment profit or toss which 15 referred to as EBITDA This
measure 15 reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of performance

Interest income, interest expense and income tax expense are not included
In the EBITDA profit measure which 1s reviewed by the CODM Tax and
treasury balances are managed centrally

Segment assets and labilives are not regularly prowided to the CODM

The Group has elected, as provided under IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
{amended 2009} not to cisclose a measure of segment assets or habilities
where these amounts are not regulardy prowided to the CODM

Intersegment revenue is recorded at values that represent estmated
third-party selling pnces

With respect to geographical regons, revenue I1s generally allocated to
countries based on the location where the goods and services are provided
Non-current assets are disclosed according to the location of the
businesses to which the assets relate In 2012 and 2011, all segments
operated solely In the UK, and as a result no secondary format 1s provided
in the financial statements

Primary reporting format - business segments

The tahle below sets out information for the Group's business segments for
the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 Segment revenue represents
revenue from extemal customers ansing from the sale of goods and services.
The type of products sold by each segment s detailed th the Business Review

Segment results include ilems directly attnibutable to @ segment as well as
those that can be allocated on 3 reasonable basis
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5. Segmental analysis - operating segments continued

Analysis by business segment 2012
Digital Total
Digital solutlons tor Head Intra-group continued  Discontinued

marketing healtheare Office adjustments cperations operations Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue 988 769 - [138) 1,619 550 2,169
EBITDA 62 (253} {326) - {517) (12) (529)
Depreclation {4) (8} (1) - {13) (3) {16}
Amortisation (25) - - - {25} - (25}
Operating (loss)/profit 33 (261} {327} - (555} {15) (570)

Profit on disposal of UK publishing - - - - - T4 74
Share issues costs - - (54} - (54} - (54)
Finance costs (1) - (37} - (38) - (38)
(Loss)/profit before tax 32 {261) (418} - (647) 59 (588)

Income tax - - - - - - -
(Loss)/ profit after tax 3z {261) (418) - (647) 59 (588)

Segment assets 235 267 100 - 602 - 602
Segment liabilities (448) {237) (319) - {1,064} - {1,064)

Analysis by business segment 2011
Total
Digital Head conanued Discanvunued

marketing Otfice operations operabons Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue 871 - 871 974 1,845
EBITDA 152 (215) (63) (43) {106)
Depreciation {4) - 4) (5) {9)
Amorusation {18) - (18) - {18}
Operating {loss)/ profit 130 (215) (85) {(48) (133)
Finance costs - {25} {25) - (25)
{Loss)/profit before tax 130 (240} (110) (48) (158)

Income tax - - - g g
(Loss)/profit after tax 130 {240} (110) (39) (149}

Segment assets 282 25 307 485 792
Segment habiliues {144) {737} (881} (367} (1,248)
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6. Loss on operating activities before taxation

2012 2011
£000 £000

Loss on ordinary activities before and after taxation is stated after charging
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services 19 21
Auditors’ remuneration for non-audit services - tax services 2 -
Directors’ and employees’ share-based payments 13 13
Impament charge for provisions i relaticn to irecoverability of trade receivables 4 6
Operating lease charges - land and buildings 90 52
Operating lease charges - other assets - 8
Depreciation 16 g
Amorusation 15 18

Auditors’ remuneration includes fees of £6,000 (2011 £6,000) for the Compary

7. Employee information
The average number of persons employed by the Group (Incleding Directors} dunng the year, analysed by category, was as follows

Number of emplayees

2012 2011
Management and finance - 2
Technica! and production 11 9
Editoral 2 ]
Sales and marketing 2 5
Administrative 1 1
Health coaches and project managers 8 1
30 23

Staff costs for the above employees during the year amounted to
2012 2011
E000 £000
Wages and salanes 1,043 1,061
Social secunty costs 119 100
1,162 1,161
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7. Employee information continued
Directors’ emoluments

2012
Salanes & fees Bonus Benefits in kind 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive directors
A Margolis 119 22 - 141 117
D Assor 168 100 5 213 125
D Baladason 52 - - 52 -
C Wexler 128 - - 128 -
Non-Executive directors
M J Sinclair 50 - - 50 -
517 122 5 644 242

Dunng 2012 and 2011 no warrants and no share options were 1ssued to directors

tncluded in the directors’ emoluments above is a charge of £50,000 in the year to the Company and Group by Senate Consulting Ltd (2011 £nil charge)
of which Dr M J Sinclair and his immediate family have a centrolling interest.

Included in the directors’ emoluments above 1s a charge of £52,190 i the year to the Company and Group by Mataxs Ltd {2011 £nil charge) of which
Donald Baladasan has a controlling interest.

Included in the directors’ emoluments above is a charge of £128,000 1n the year to the Company and the Group by Clare Wexler (2011 £rul) who was the
former Chief Executive Officer of Totally PLC

Not included in the directors’ emoluments above 1s a charge of £36,000 in the year to the Company and Group for services provided by Wendy Lawrence
{2011 £nil} who was subseguently appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of Totally PLC on 18 February 2013

As at the date of the authonsation of the financizl statements, £90,000 of the £100,000 bonus included within D Assor emaluments was not paid
Other remuneration and benefits in kand for the year for the non-executive Directors amounted to £nil (2011 £nil)

Employes benefits

Share based compensation

The Group operates an equiy-settled share based compensation plan for Directors and executives In accordance with IFRS 1, the Group has elected to implement
the measurement requirements of IFRS 2 n respect of only those equity-settied share options that were granted after 7 November 2002 and that had not vested
as at 1 January 2005 The fan value of the employee services receved in exchange for the grant of options 15 recognised as an expense over the vesting penod The
total amount 1o be expensed over the vesung pencd 1s determined by reference (o the fair value of the options granted at the grant date At each balance sheet
date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of options that are expected to vest. i recognises the impact of the revisicn of original estimates, If any, in the
Statement of Consolidated Income, and a comesponding adjustiment 1o equity over the remaining vesting penod When share opbons are cancelled the Group
aceounts for the cancellation as an acceleraton of vesting and therefore recagnises immediately the amount that ctherwise would have been recognised for
services received over the remainder of the vesting penod The proceeds receved net of any directly attnbutable transaction costs are credited to share capital
{nominal value) and share premium when the options are exercised The fair value of share eptions has been assessed using the Black Scholes Mode!
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7. Employee information continued

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment 1S terminated before normal retirement date, or whenever an employee 1S expected to accept voluntary
redundancy In exchange for these benefits The Group recognises these benefits when it 1s demonstrably committed to terminating the employment of
current employees in line with a formal plan, or providing termination benefits as a result of the expected take up of an offer for veluntary redundancy

Included n wages and salanes is a total charge for share based payments of £13,000 (2011 £14,000) which in both years anses whelly from '
transactions accounted for as equity settled share based payments

8. Taxation
a) Taxation charge
2012 2011
£000 £000
Research and development tax credit - {9}
Total current income tax credit charged in the incorne staternent - {9}
b) Taxation recencillation
The current income tax credit for the penod 15 explained below
2012 2011
E00D £000
Loss before tax (588) (149)
Taxation st the standard UK income tax rate of 24 5 percent (2011 26 5 per cent} (144) (39)
Research and develapment tax credit - {9)
Unhisation of brought forward tax losses - -
Losses carned forward 144 39
Total income tax credited in the income statement - t2)]

b} Deferred tax
Estimated tax losses of approximately £750,000 (2011 £3,600,000) are avarlable to reheve future profits of the Group A defemred tax asset has not been
recognised in respect of these losses due to uncertainty as to the uming and tax rate at which these losses will be vtlised against future taxable profit streams

9. Finance costs

2012 2011
£000 £000
On bank overdrafts 38 25
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10. Intangible fixed assets
Software Total
Group £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2012 518 518
Additions g 9
On disposal of subsidiary {446) {4486)
At 31 December 2012 81 81
Amortisation
At 1 January 2012 489 489
Provided In the year 25 25
On disposal of subsidiary (444) (444}
At 31 December 2012 T0 70
Net carrylng value
At 31 December 2012 11 11
At 31 December 2011 29 29
11. Property, plant and equipment
Short
leasehold Computer Futures

property equipment and fitings Total
Group 000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2012 65 132 73 270
Additions 28 1 - 29
QOn disposal of subsidiary - (120) (58} {178)
At 31 December 2012 93 13 15 121
Depreciation
At 1 January 2012 58 132 55 245
Provided in the year 12 - 1 13
On disposal of subsidary - (120) (41) (161)
At 31 December 2012 TO 12 15 97
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 23 1 - 24
At 31 December 2011 5 - 18 23

All property, plant and equipment was pledged as secunty for the Group's overdraft faciliies, all of which were repaid dunng the year
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11. Property, plant and equipment continued

Short
leasehold Computer Foctures
property equipment and fitungs Total

Company £000 1000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January and 31 December 2012 54 7 12 13
Depreciation
At 1 January and 31 December 2012 54 7 11 72
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 - - 1 1
At 31 December 2011 - - 1 1
12, Investments
Company
Investments In share capital of wholly owned subsidianes

Total

£000
Cost
At beginning of year 155
Additions -
At end of year 155
Provision for impairment
At beginning of year 155
Reversal in year {155}
At end of vear -
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 155

At 31 December 2011

The subsichary companies, all of which have been consolidated, at 31 December 2012 are as follows All shares are held derectly by the comparny

Percentage of
Subsidrary undertakings held directty Country of incorpgration equity capital heid Nature of business
Totally Commumications Limited England and Wales 100% Technical and marketing serices
Totally Health Lmited England and Wales 100% Bespake IT healthcare solutions
Londen Jewish News Limited England and Wales 100% Dormant
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CONTINUED

12, Investments continued

The subsidiary compares, all of which had been consolidated at 31 December 2011 and were sotd dunng 2012 are as follows All shares were held
drrectly by the company

Percentage of
Subsidiary undertakings held directly Country of incorporation equity capital held Nature of business
Totally Jewish com Limited England and Wales 100% Online media
The Jewish News Limited England and Wales 100% Print media

Subsidianes are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting nghts The results of subsidianes are included in the Group income statement from the date of acquisibon untl the date
that such control ceases Intercompany transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated upon consolidation

13. Amounts recoverable on contracts

Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000
Amounts recoverable on contracts 154 - - -

Amounts recoverable on contracts represent the costs of Totally Health contracts in progress at the balance sheet date, less progress billings to date

14. Trade and other receivables

Group Group Company Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade recenables 173 443 66 -

Less provision for impairment on receivables {4) ({6) - -

Trade recevables - net 169 437 66 -

Directors’ loans 20 - 8 -
Prepayments and accrued income 174 169 11

363 606 85 2

Movement on the Group and Company prowision for impairment of rade recenables are as follows

Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 6 7 - -
Recavables written off during the year as uncollectable (8) (N - -
Prowislons made 1n the year 4 6 -
At 31 December 4 8 - -
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14. Trade and other recevables continued

The creation of provision for Impaired trade recevables has been included in administration costs in the income statement Amounts charged to the
altowance account are generally wniten off when there 15 no expectation of recovenng additional cash There 1S no prowision for other recevables

As of 31 December 2012 the following trade recesvables were past due but not imparred These relate to a number of independent customers for whom

there 1s no recent history of default The ageing analysis of these trade recevables 1s as follows

Group Group Company Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£000 £000 EDOO £000

Under three months 134 322 57 -
Three to six months 20 8% 9 -
Qver six months 15 26 - -
169 437 66 -

The group holds no collateral against these recenvables at the balance sheet date and does not charge interest on its overdue receivables

The other classes within trade and other recevables do not contain impaired assets

Directors’ loans of £20,000 (2011 £mil} have been granted dunng the year The loans are interest free and have been repaid since 31 December 2012

15. Trade and other payables

Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000

Current
Trade payables 351 176 104 20
Amounts owed 10 group undertakings - - 1,559 1,433
(ther taxes and social security 325 152 62 91
Other creditors 76 6 17 -
Accruals and deferred income 312 324 107 36
1,064 658 1,909 1,580

Trade payables and accruals pnncipally compnse amounts outstanding from purchases and engomg costs The directors consider that the carrying

amount of trade payables appreximates to their fair value
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16. Financial habiltties - borrowings

Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000
Repayable within one year - 590 - 590
Secured borrowings - 590 - 590
Undrawn facllities
The undrawn overdraft facilites available to the Group at the year end in respect of which all conditons precedent have been met at that date were as foliows
012 2011
£000 £000
Expinng in less than one year - 10

Secured llabHitles
The Group's financial labilives dunng the year ended 31 December 2011 were compnsed of two overdraft faciities, both repayable 1n less than one year

One overdraft was secured by a debenture over the Group's trade debtors aged below 90 days, with a hmit of £50,000 charging interest at 3 75 per cent
above bank base rate per annum This facility expired dunng 2012

The second facility had a imit of £600,000 charging interest at 2 per cent above bank base rate per annum As secunty for the second facility, the bank
had obtained the unlimited Joint and Several Guarantees of Dr Michael J Sinclair (non-executive Chairman}, and Mr Leo Noe At 31 December 2011 there
was no difference between the book and fair value of the Group's financial liabilibes There were no fixed rate 11abilites dunng the year This facility had
formally expired on 30 June 2011, but had remained in place until 8 May 2012 The facility has now been repaid by the Group

All monetary assets and habihtes at the balance sheet date are held in Sterling, the Group’s functional currency

17. Financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments compnse cash and vanous items, such as trade receivables and trade payables that anse directly from its operations
The main purpose of these financial instruments 1S to raise finance for the Group’s operation

Falr vatues of financial instruments

For the following financial assets and liabilites long-term borrowsngs, short-term borrowings, trade and other payables, trade and other recevables and
cash at bank and in hand, the camying amount approxsmates the far value of the instrument due to the Instrument beanng interest at market rates and/or
the short-term nature of the nstrument.

Maturity of financlal llabllitles
Group Group Cempany Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000

Amounts payable

within one year - 590 - 590
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17. Financial instruments continued

The Group’s actvities expose the Group to a number of nsks including capital management nsk, interest rate nsk, foreign exchange nsk, credit nsk and
liquidity nsk. The policies for managing these nsks are regularly reviewed and agreed by the Board

It1s, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group's policy that no trading 1n financial snstruments should be undertaken

Capita! management risk

The Group's main objective when managing capital 1s 1o protect retumns to shareholders by ensuning the Group will continue to trade n the foreseeable
future The Group also aims to opumise s capital structure of debt and equity so as 1o minimise its ¢ost of capital The Greup in particular reviews Its
levels of borrowing and the repayment dates, setung these out against forecast cash flows and reviewing the level of avallable funds

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity attnbutable to holders of the parent, comprising 1ssued share
captal, reserves and retaned eamings Consistent with others in the tndustry, the Group reviews the geanng ratio to montor the capital This ratio ts
calculated as the net debt divided by total capital Net debt)s calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents Total capital s calculated as
equity (including capital, reserves and retained earmings) This gearing ratio will be considered in the wider macroeconomic environment With the current
restraints on availability of finance and economic pressures the Group has lowered its geanng ratio expectations and has conbinued to reduce 1ts debt in
the year to 31 December 2012

Interest rate risk
The Group and Compary’s interest rate exposure anses mainly from the interest bearing borrowings as distlosed in note 16 Currently all of the Group’s
faciliies are at floabng rates, which expose the entity to cash flow risk

Forelgn exchange risk
The Group and Company operates pnncipally in the United Kingdem and as such the majonty of the Group and Company's financial assets and habiliies
are denominated in steding, and there 1s no matenal exposure 1o exchange nsks

Credit Hsk
The Group’s credit nsk pnmanly relates to trade and other receivables and accrued income The amounts presented in the statement of financial position
are net of allowances for doubtful recenables, estimated by the Group’s management

Customer credit nsk 1s managed by each business umit subject to the Group's established policy, procedures and controls relating to customer credit management.
Credit imits are established for all customers and are based inter ahia on credit checks Gutstanding customer recevables are regularty monitored

Concentration of eredit nsk with respect to trade receivables 1s imited in Totally Communications due to its customer base being large and unrelated
Totally Health does trade with a small number of NHS Trust customers but the Directors consider that the credit nsk is minimised by contractual
arrangements which require customers to make stage payments as service delivery progresses, Totally Health's experience of on uime payments received
so far and the government backing being given to these mitiatives

Uquidlity risk

Cash balances and borrowings are managed so as to maxmse interest eamed and minimise interest paid, while maintaining the liguidity requirement of
the business When seeking borrowings, the directors’ consider the commercial terms available and, In consultation with their adwisors, consider whether
such terms should be fixed or variable and are appropnate to the business

The Group would normally expect that sufficient cash 1s generated in the operating cycle to meet the contractual cash flows through effective cash
management. At 31 December 2011 the Group had borrowings in the form of bank overdrafts of £590K compared to available facilives of £600K,
which could be accessed as considered necessary These facilities were repard dunng 2012

37




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

18. Share capital and reserves

31 December 2012 31 December 2011
£000 £000
Authorised

148,786,275 ordinary shares of 1p each {2011 125,000,000) 1,488 1,250
20,500,000 deferred shares of 1p each (2011 20,500,000) 205 205
1,693 1,455

Allotted, called up and fully paid
148,786,275 ordinary shares of 1p each (2011 91,947,934) 1,488 919
20,500,000 deferred shares of 1p each (2011 20,500,000} 205 206
1,693 1,124

The Deferred Shares camy no voung nghts, no nghts to atiend general meeangs of the Company, and no nghts to receive dividends The Deferred Shares
do cany a right to parucipate in any return of capital to the extent of 0 01 pence per Deferred Share but only after each Ordinary Share has received in

apgregate capital repayments totalling £1,000,000 per Ordinary Share

Number of ordinary shares 2012 2011
Balance 1 January 91,947,934 91,947,934
Issue of shares (see below} 56,838,341 -
Balance 31 December 148,786,275 91,947,934

Dunng December 2012 existng warrant holders agreed to sell 113,676,681 warrants to subscnbe for 113,676,681 new Ordmary Shares of 1p each in

the Company to mnvestors at a purchase pnce of O 2p per warrant.

Under the terms of the Agreement, holders of 56,838,341 warrants subscnbed for 56,838,341 Ordinary Shares of 1p ¢ach on 17 December 2012 The

net constderation after costs for the Company from this 1ssue of shares was £515,000

After the end of the reperting penod holders of 56,838,340 warrants subscribed for 56,838,340 Ordinary Shares of 1p each on 14 January 2013 at an

exercise pnce of 1p per share The net consideration for the Company from this 1ssue of shares was £539,000

Earnings per share 2012 2011

Basic and diluted earmings {conbnuing operations} (£000) {647) (110)
Basic and diluted eamings (discontinued operations} (£000) 59 {38)
Weighted average number of shares used in basic and diluted earmings

per share calculations {continuing operatlons) {000) 94,122 91,948

Wesghted average number of shares used in basic and dituted earmings

per share calculations {disconbinued operations) {000} 94,122 91,948

Basic earmings per share (continuing operations) (Pance) (0.69) (0 12)
Basic earnings per share {discontinued operations) {Pence) 007 {0 04)
Diluted earnings per share (continuing operations} (Pence) {0.69) {012}
Diluted earnings per share (discantinued cperations) {Pence} 007 {0 04}

Basic loss per share is calculated by dmding the loss attnbutable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares

in issue during the year

None of the share oplions or warrants in issue had a dilutive effect on earmings per share in 2012 and 2011
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18. Share capital and reserves continued

Share options
Details of all options in 1ssue at 31 December 20112 are as follows

Qutstanding at Expired Resldual at
Grant date Exercise pnce start of year Issued in year In year 31 December 2012
17 December 2002 15p 10,000 - (10,000) -
22 December 2004 288p 25,000 - - 25,000
16 May 2005 2375p 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
1 January 2006 2 38p 150,000 - - 150,000
29 March 2007 225p 1,033,333 - - 1,033,333
10 April 2007 288p 100,000 - - 100,000
1 January 2008 1p 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
27 July 2009 ip 10,575,000 - - 10,575,000
8 October 2009 1p 3,050,000 - - 3,050,000
22 Apnl 2010 1p 500,000 - - 500,000

17,443,333 - {10,000 17,433,333

Al options granted and outstanding as shown above may be exercised from the date of grant for a penod of 10 years

Warrants currently In Issue
No warrants were issued in the year

Details of all warrants in 1ssue at 31 December 2012 are as follows

Qutstanding at Converted®  Residual at 31
Grant date Exerctse penod Exercise pnce start aof year Expired 1n year toequity December 2012
21 May 2002 Within 10 years from grant date 5p 1,916,665 (1,916,6€5) - -
18 June 2004 Within 7 years from grant date 5p 4,287,143 (4,287,143) - -
4 November 2005 Within 7 years from grant date 2p 2,500,000 (2,500,000) - -
2 duly 2008 Within 10 years from grant date 1 25p 4,500,000 - (4,500,000) -
30 September 2008 No expiry date 1p 70,000,000 - (35,000,000 35,000,000
27 Juty 2009 Within 10 years from grant date 1p 16,752,528 - (16,752,528) -
8 October 2009 Within 10 years from grant date ip 166,666 - - 166,666
13 Apnl 2010 Within 1Q years from grant date ip 32,424,153 - (32,424,153) -
22 April 2010 Within 10 years from grant date 1p 25,000,000 - {25,000,000) -

157,547,155 (8,703,808} (113,676,681) 35,166,666

* As noted on page 38 these warrants were sold 10 a broker in December 2012 and by the year end 56 838 341 Ordinary Shares had been subscnbed for by investors
The balance was placed with investors in January 2013 No breakdown of the warrants subscnbed pre and post year end Is readily available to provide the analysis required

abave and hence all the relevant warrants are shown as converted

Share pramium gccount

The share premium account represents the amounts received by the Company on the 1ssue of Ordinary Shares that are in excess of the nominal value of

the 1ssued shares Directly chargeabte issue costs are charged to the share premium account.
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19, Share-based payment

Dunng the year ended ending 31 December 2012 the Group and Company had two share based payment arrangements as descnbed below

a) Employee Share Options
Totally PLC Enterpnse Management Incentive Plan - 10 year it

The estimated fair value of each option has been calculated using the Black Scholes eption pncing modei for different options granted between
17 December 2002 and 22 April 2010 The estimated fair value of options vanes between G 7 pence and 0 04 pence The model inputs are share price
at grant date, exercise pnce, expected volatlity of 29 per cent, no expected dividends, contractual fife of three years, and a nsk free interest rate of four

per cent A reconcihation of option movemnents over the year 15 shown below

The velatlity of the Company’s share price on each date of grant was calculated as the average of the standard deviations of daly continugusly
compounded returns on the stock of the company, calculated back over a penod commensurate with the expected Iife of the option The nsk-free rate
used Is the yield to matunty on the date of grant, with term to matunty equal to the expected life of the option It was assumed that optians would be

exercised within two years of the date on which they vest.

2012 2012 welghted 2011 2011 weighted

Number average price Number average pnce

‘000s Pence 000s Pence

Qutstanding at 1 January 17,443 117 17,443 117
Granted - - - -
Surrendered - - - -
Exercised - - - -
Expired {10} - - -
Outstanding at 31 December 17,433 117 17,443 117
2012 2011

Range of exercise pnce (Pence} 100-500 100-500
Weighted average exercise pnee (Pence) 117 117
Number of shares (000's) 17,443 17,443
Weighted average remaining life years - Expected 7 8
Weighted average remaining life years - Contractual ] 8

b) Warrants

The estimated fair value of each warrant has been calculated using the Black Scholes option pricing model for different wanants granted as outhned in Note 18
The estimated fair value of warrants vanes between { 8 pence and 0 01 pence The model inputs are share pnce at grant date, exercise pnce, expected volatility
of 29 per cent, no expected dividends, contractual Iife of three years, and a nsk free interest rate of four per cent. A three year contractual ife has been used to
reflect the non-tradability of the warrants compared to the actual contractual life of seven years The full cost of the warrants 15 recognised at the date of grant.
Expenses charged to the profit and loss in the year i respect of share based payments are as follows for the Group and Comparny

2012 2011
£000 £000
Expense ansing from 1ssue of share gption warrants - equity settled 13 14
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20. Company changes In equity

Share premium Profit and [oss Equity share-
Share capital account agcount holders deficit
Company £00C £000 £Q00 £000
At 1 January 2011 1,124 3,353 {6,396} (1,919)
Loss for the year - - (240} (240)
Credit on 1ssue of warrants - - 14 14
At 31 December 2011 1,124 3,353 (6,622) {2,145)
Loss for the year - - (36) {36}
Issue of share capital 569 - {54) 515
Credit on 1ssue of warrants - - 13 13
At 31 December 2012 1,693 3,383 (8,699) {1,653)
21. Commitments
a) Caphal expenditure commiments
At 31 December 2012 and 2011 the Group had no capital commitments
b) Operating leases agreements
At 31 December 2012 the Group had the following aggregate mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating iease rentals
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000 i
Land and buildings
Within one year 63 55 - -
Between two and five years 59 94 - -
After more than five years - - - .
122 149 - - '
Other assets
Within one year - 8 - -
Between two and five years - 3 - -
After more than five years - - -
- 11 - -

22, Related party transactions

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption available under IAS 24, “Related Party Disclosures™, not 1o disclose details of transactions between

Group undertakings which are eiminated on conschidation

Included within current liabilities tn the Company statement of financial position are amounts owed to 100% subsidiary undertakings of £1 56m (2011
£1 43m) The movement in the Company's balances with its subsidianes reflects the Group's banking facilities and amangements operating during the year
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22. Related party transactions continued
The followang related party transactions are required to be disclosed in accordance with 1A524

In 2012, no purchases (2011 £B,5625), were made from K Margolis, wife of A Margolis who 1s a director of both Totally Communications Limited and

Totally PLC The purchases were made on an arm's length basis A balance of £l (2011 £1,000) 1s included in trade creditors at the year end

23. Discontinued operations - UK publishing group

&) On the 15 May, Totally PLC announced the sale of its UK publishing business to JN News and Media Group Limited The net consideration recenvable

was £211,000 The proceeds of the disposal has been used to reduce the Group’s indebtedness and to fund the working capital requirement of

Totally Communications and Totally Health

b} Profit and Loss from discontinted operations

2012 2011

£000 1000
Revenue 550 975
Expenses (565} (1,023}
Operating loss (15) (48}
Income tax credit - 9
Loss for the year from operating activities (15) (39)
Profit on disposal of subsidiary (see note 23¢} 74 -
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operatlons 59 {39)
The 2012 trading results tnclude operating activites from 1 January 2012 to 15 May 2012
¢) Profit on disposal of subsidiary 2012

£000

Sale proceeds (after net assets based pnce adjustments) 211
Less Legal and professional fees (68)
Less Director's bonus in respect of sale (100)
Net consideration receivable 43
Net assets/labiliies disposed of
Property plant and equipment 17
Cash at bank 12
Working capital - inventones, receivables and payables (60}
Net liabilities disposed of (31}
Profit on disposal of subsidiary 74

At 31 December 2012 the Group had not pad £90,000 of the director's bonus and £77,000 of the consideration that was payable to the purchaser

In respect of the disposal Therefore the net cash receved from the disposal in the year was £210,000 as disclosed in the consolidated cash flow

statement on page 22

The Group has sufficient current year tax losses 1o offset the profit on disposal of substdiary Therefore, no income tax change or credit 1s expected in

respect of the disposal
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24. Post balance sheet events

After the end of the reporting penod holders of 56,838,340 of the warrants subscribed for 56,838,340 Ordinary Shares of 1p each on 14 January 2013
at an exercise pnee of 1p per share The net consideration receved by the Company from this issue of shares was £539,000

Following the end of the reporting penod Clare Wexler resigned as CEO of Totally Pic and was replaced by Wendy Lawrence The Company 15 currently in

dialogue with Mrs Wexler and her representatives regarding an appropnate compromise package The Directors believe this will be settled at a level
commensurate to the circumstances of Mrs Wexler's resignation

25. Notes to the cash flow statement - cash flows relating to discontinued operations

2012 2011
£000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating loss {15) (48)
Amortisation and depreciation 3 5
Movement in working capital balances (45) 12
Net cash utilised by operating activities (57} (31)
Research and development tax credit - 9
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of non-current assets {1) (22}
Cash disposed with subsidiary {12) -
Net cash utilised by mvesting activities (13} (22)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (70) (44)
Cash and cash equivalents at begsnning of year 70 114
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December - 70

The above operations are up to the 15th May 2012
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